
IN RE: 

State of Missouri 
DEPARTMENT or INSURANCE, FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND 

PROFESSI0l\AL REGISTRATIO'. 

JERRY L. STA FILL, 

Applicant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case o. 14-0429443C 

ORDER REF ~G TO I SL'E 
AN INSURA.i'"CE PRODUCER LICEN E 

On June i~ ~O I ·L the Consumer Affairs Dh ision submitted a Petition to the Director 
alleging cause for refusing to issue an indi, idual insurance producer license Lo JeIT) L SLanfill. 
After reviewing the Petition. the Imestigalive Report and the entirety of the file. the Director 
issues the follo\.\- ing findings of fact. conclusions oflaw. and order: 

FINDING OFF ACT 

I. JelT) L. Stanfill ( .. Stanfill'') is a Missouri resident 'wi.th a residential address of 1417 
\Valnut Court. Festus, Missouri. 63028. 

2. On March 25. 20 l 4, the Department received Stanfill" s completed electronic 
Application for an indi,·idual Missouri insurance producer license (the 
.. Application··). 

3. Background Question No. I B of the Application asks the following. in re levant part: 

Ha, e you e\er been com icred of a felon). had a judgment withheld or 
deferred. or are you currently charged v. ith committing a felony? You 
may exclude juvenile adjudications (offenses where you were 
adjudicated delinquent in a juvenile court). 

4. Stanfill marked .. Yes" to Background Question No. 1 B. 

5. Stanfill provided a written statement v,,ith his Application. \\ hich stated. in relevant 
pan. , erbatim: 

On 11-20-2001, J had a possession charge of a controlled Substance in 
JefTerson Count) Missouri. I was sentensed to 5 yrs probation on 1 I -
2 J-2003. 1 served one year and was released. 6 months supen ised and 



6 months minimum. It was just a lm, time in m: life which I pa) for 
continuously. It is not something I 'm proud of but has made me a 
better person at the same time. Since this incident J have not been in 
trouble and have educated m} self vigorous I). 

6. Stanfill prm ided a certified copy of the docket sheet in State of ,\1,ssouri '\I. Jerry l. 
Stanfill. Jefferson Co. Cir. Ct.. No. 23CR302- I 312. evidently the case to \.\ hich 
Stanfill referred in his ~Titten statement, but he did not disclose an) further detail 
about the charge he described and did not pro, ide a cop) of the Information or the 
Sentence and Judgment in the case. 

7. Suinfill did not disclose any further criminal histOI). 

8. The Consumer Affairs Di, ision (the .. DiYision .. ) conducted an im estigalion of 
Stanfilrs Application. which revealed that on January 2 1. 2003, tanfil1 pleaded 
guilty in the Jefferson County Circuit Court to the Class C Felon: of Possession of a 
Controlled ubstance Except 35 Grams or Less of \ Iarijuana in , io1arion of 
§ 195.202. R ~to. The court sentenced tanfilJ to a term o f three )ears· 
imprisonment, but suspended execution of the sentence and placed Stanfill on five 
years· probation. On December 14, 2005. the court ordered Stanfill discharged from 
probation.1 

9. The Division ·s investigation further revealed that on Xo, ember 13, 1995. Stanfill 
pleaded guilt) in the Jefferson County Circuit Coun to the Class C Felon) of 
Stealing. in violation of § 570.030. R Mo. The court suspended rhe imposition of 
sentence and placed Stanfill on fhe years· probation. On April 18. 2000, the court 
discharged Stanfill from probation.2 

I 0. In a phone com ersation with Division Investigator E.J. Jack.son. Stanfill stated that 
he had not disclosed in his Application that he pleaded guilty Lo the Class C Felony of 
Stealing and recei\'ed a suspended imposition of semence because be did not remember 
that the charge had been a felony. 

11. Back.ground Question No. I A of the Application asks: 

Have ) ou e, er been convicted of a misdemeanor. had a judgment 
\\ithheld or deferred. or are you current!} charged v. ith committing a 
rn isdemeanor? 

You may exclude the folio\, ing misdemeanor com ictions or pending 
misdemeanor charges: traffic citations. dri, ing under the influence 

1 
State o(Missouri \'. Jerry l. Stanfill. Jefferson Co Cir. Cc.. No. 23CRJ02- I 3 I 2 

• Stare of.\Jissouri v Jem L Stanfill. Jefferson Co. Cir. Ct.. l\o 2JCR 195-1407. 
2 



(DCI). driving ,, hile intoxicated (D\\1). drh ing ,, ithout a license. 
reckless dri, ing. or dri, ing with a suspended or revoked license. You 
may also exclude juvenile adjudications (offenses where you were 
adjudicated delinquent in a juvenile court)[.] 

12. Stanfill marked ''No"' to Background Question 1A. 

13. Background Question No. 2 of the Application asJ..s: 

Have you ever been named or involved as a party in an administrative 
proceeding. including FTNRA sanction or arbitration proceeding 
regarding an) professional or occupational license or registration? 

··Involved"' means having a license censured. suspended. revoked. 
sanctioned or surrendering a license to resolve an administrati,·e action. 
'·Involved"' also means being named as a party to an administrative or 
arbitration proceeding. which is related to a professional or 
occupational license. or registration. ··Involved·· also means having a 
license, or registration application denied or the act of withdrawing an 
application to avoid a denial. 

INCLUDE an) business so named because of ) our actions in your 
capacity as an owner, partner, officer or director. or member or 
manager of a Limited Liabilit) Company. You may EXCLL"D E 
terminations due solely to noncompliance ,, ith continuing education 
requirements or failure to pa) a renewal fee. 

If you answer ) es. you must attach tO this application: a) a written 
statement identifying the t) pe of license and explaining the 
circumstances of each incident, b) a copy of the Notice of Hearing or 
other document that states the charges and allegations. and c) a copy of 
the official documenL ,.,_ hich demonstrates the resolution of the charges 
or any final judgment. 

14. Stanfill marked .. No·· to Background Question No. 2 and did not disclose any 
in, ol\ement in an administrative proceeding regarding a professional or 
occupational license or registration. 

I 5. The D ivision·s investigation reveaJed that contrary to tanfi!rs answer to 
Background Question No. 2, Stanfill had been invol\ cd in an administrative 
proceeding regarding a professional or occupational license or registration. On April 
18. 2013, the Indiana Commissioner of lnsurance entered a Final Order granting 
Stanfill a probationaf) independent insurance adjuster's license under the terms of an 
Agreed Entry. Stanfil l signed the Agreed Entry. agreeing to its tenns, dating his 
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16. 

signature April 1. 2013. ' 

The Agreed Entry signed b) 
documentation showed that 
September 13. 1995(.r 

Stanfill on April L 2013. recites that .. supporting 
tanfill was com icted of a Felon) for Theft on 

17. Stanfilrs explanation for h is fai lure to disclose in his Application that he pleaded 
guilt} to the Class C Felon) of tealing and received a suspended imposition of sentence 
because he did not remember that the charge had been a felony is not credible. Having 
been charged with and p leaded gui lty to a fe lony are events that a person is unl ikely to 
forget. 

I 8. Stanfill' s intentional fail ure to disclose the Class C Felony of Stealing is also evidenced 
b) the fact that the Indiana Commissioner of Insurance entered into an agreement signed 
b) tanfill for an independent insurance adjuster·s license based on that felon) and the 
Indiana Commissioner' s consent to a license under 18 U.S.C. § 1033. That Agreed 
Entry recites that ·'supporting documentation showed that Stanfill \,as convicted of a 
Felon) for Theft on September I 3. 1995,'' and Stanfill signed the Agreed Entry on April 
1. 2013.4 

19. Moreover. Background Questions IA and l 8 both inquire whether the applicant has 
.. had a judgment \\.ithheld or deferred:· \\hicb would require tanfiU to answer ··Yes .. 
because he had a suspended imposition of sentence (a judgment withheld or deferred). 
lf tanfill had fai led to disclose hjs Class C Felony of Stealing solely because he 
erroneous)} remembered it as ha\.ing been a misdemeanor. he ,vould not ha\e answered 
··~o·· to Background Question lA. which asks about mjsdemeanors. 

20. It is inferable. and is hereby found as fact. that Stanfill fa iled to disclose in his 
Application that he pleaded guilty to the Class C Felony of tealing and received a 
suspended imposition of sentence. in order to minimize to the Di rector the extent of his 
criminal history, and. accordingly. in order to improve the chances that the Director 
would appro, e his Application and issue him an insurance producer license. 

2 l. It is inferable, and is hereby found as fact, that tanfi ll fa lsely ansv. cred ··No" to 
Background Question No. 2 and failed to disclose in his Application that he had been 
imolved in an administrative proceeding regarding a professional or occupational 
license or registration, in order to false)) represent to the Director that he had never 
been involved in an administrative proceeding regarding a professional or 
occupational license or registration, and. accordingly. in order lo impro\'e the chances 

' In the Matter of Insurance Agem license Application of Jerry lee Stanfill. Before the Indiana 
Commissioner of Insurance. Cause '\Jo. 11682-AD 12-1203-063. 
4 Despite seeking and receiving 18 L .S.C. § I 033 consent from the Indiana Commissioner because of his 
felon}. Stanfill d id not apply for such consent in Missouri. 
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that the Director ,vould approve his Application and issue him an insurance producer 
license. 

CO CLUSION OF LA \V 

ection 375.141 provides, in part: 

l. The director ma)' suspend. revoke. refuse to issue or refuse to rene,, an 
insurance producer license for any one or more of the follo,,·ing causes: 

( l) lntentionaH) providing materiall) incorrect. misleading. incomplete or 
untrue infonnation in the license application: 

* * • 

(3) Obtaining or attempting to obtain a license through material 
misrepresentation or fraud; 

* * * 

(6) Ha, ing been com icted of a felon) or crime invoh ing moral 
turpitude [.] 

'.!3. The principal purpose of§ 375.141 is not to punish licensees or applicants. but to 
protect the public. Ballew v. Ainsworth. 670 S. W.2d 94. l 00 (Mo. App. E.D. 1984 }. 

24. The Director may refuse to issue Stanfill an individual insurance producer license 
under§ 375.141.l(l) because Stanfill intentionally prO\ided materially incorrect. 
misleading. incomplete or untrue information on his Application when he: 

a. Failed to disclose in his Application that he pleaded guilt) to the Class C 
Felony of Stealing and received a suspended imposition of sentence; and 

b. Falsely answered ··No·· to Background Question No. 2 and failed to disclose 
in his Application that he had been im olved in an administrative proceeding 
regarding a professional or occupational license or registration. in order to 
fa lsely represent to the Director that he had never been involved in an 
administrative proceeding regarding a professional or occupational license 
or registration. 

25. The Director also may refuse to issue Stanfill an individual insurance producer 
license under§ 375.141.1(3) because tanfill attempted to obtain a license through 
material misrepresentation or fraud when he: 
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a. Failed to disclose in his Application that he pleaded guilty to the Class C 
Felony of Stealing and received a suspended imposit ion of sentence. in order 
to minimize to the Director the extent of his criminal hjstory. and. 
accordingly, in order to improve the chances that tbe Director would approve 
his Application and issue him an insurance producer license; and 

b. Falsely answered ··No .. to Background Question No. 2 and fa iled co disclose 
in his Application that he had been involved in an administrative proceeding 
regarding a professional or occupational license or registration. in order to 
falsely represent to the Director that he had never been involved in an 
administrative proceeding regarding a professional or occupational license 
or registration, and, accordingly, in order to improve the chances that the 
Director would approve his Application and issue him an insurance producer 
license. 

26. The Director aJso may refuse to issue Stanfill an individual insurance producer 
license under 8 375.141.1(6) because Stanfill has been convicted of a felony: 

a. The Class C Felony of Possession of a Controlled Substance Except 35 
Grams or Less of Marijuana, in violation of§ l 95.202, RSMo. 

27. The Director has considered Stanfill" s history and all of the circumstances 
surrounding Stan.fill 's Application. Issuing Stanfill an individual insurance producer 
license would not be in the interest of the public. The Director exercises his 
discretion and refuses to issue an individual insurance producer license to Stanfill. 

35. This Order is in the public interest. 

ORDER 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the individual msurance producer license 
application of Jerry L. StanfilJ is hereby REFUSED. 

SO ORDERED. '7/J., 

WITNESS J\,fY HAND THIS J. &s; DAY OF _:!L,,w~ , 2014. 

DIRECTOR 
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~OTICE 

TO: Applicant and any unnamed persons aggrieved by this Order: 

You may request a hearing in this matter. You may do so b)- filing a complaint v. ith the 
Administrati\e Hearing Commission of Missouri. P.O. Box 1557, Jefferson City. t-..lissouri. 
\\.ithin 30 days alter the mailing of this notice pursuant to ection 621.120. RS Mo. Pursuant to I 
C R 15-3.290. unless you send your complaint by registered or certified mail. it wi ll not be 
considered filed unti l the Administrali\'e Hearing Commission recei'\eS it. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby cert if) that on this 3!!__71a) of ..Jun e , 20 I 4, a cop) of the foregoing Order 
and Notice was served upon the Applicant in this matter by certified mail at the fol lo'\\ ing 
address: 

Jerry L. Stanfill 
1417 Walnut Court 
Festus. ~tissouri 63028 

Certified No. 7001 . 59'10 0()()/ 9o(59' g[.i7 

Senior Office Support Assistant 
ln\'estigations ection 
f\ f issouri Department of Insurance. Financial 
lnstitutions and Professional Registration 
30 I Wes1 High Street, Room 530 
Jefferson Cit}. Missouri 6510 I 
Telephone: 573.751.1922 
facsimile: 573.522.3630 
Email: angie.gross@insurance.mo.gov 
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